
  
  

Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda  
11:00 a.m. | Thursday, June 24, 2021  

Meeting Held Via ZOOM due to COVID-19 (Information Below) 
 

I. Call to Order  
II. Approval May 27, 2021 Minutes  

III. Liaison Reports  
o College Senate  
o NCCCAP   
o CSEA  

IV. College Reports  
o Board Chair 
o Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs 

 Resolution | Appointment: Nursing Instructor 
 Resolution | Appointment: Math Instructor 

o Vice President for Marketing & Enrollment Management  
o Interim CFO 

 May 2021 Financials 
 Proposal | 2021-2022 budget 

o Interim Associate Vice President of Student Affairs 
o President 

 Campus Access Policy 
V. Representative Reports 

o NCCC Association  
o NCCC Foundation  

VI. Old Business  
VII. New Business  

o Proposal | 2021-2022 NCCC Board of Trustee meeting schedule 
VIII. Public Comment*  

IX. Executive Session  
X. Adjourn        

 
        An Executive Session of the Board of Trustees may be called pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officer’s Law to discuss the Medical, 
financial, credit or employment history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, 
demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal, or removal of a particular person or corporation and collective bargaining negotiations conducted 
pursuant to Article 14 of the Civil Service Law.  (Public Officers Law §105).* Public Comment: Visitors are requested to sign in before the 
beginning of the meeting.  Provision is made at this point in the agenda for citizens of the community to make comments regarding any agenda 
item to be discussed at that meeting.  Citizens will not be recognized at any other time.  No person, not a member of the Board, shall speak for 
more than five (5) minutes.  The minutes shall show that privilege of the floor was granted and shall include a brief statement of the subject 
matter presented.  
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Zoom Topic: Board of Trustees | Public Access 



Time: Jun 24, 2021 11:00 AM Eastern Time 
 
Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82821246082?pwd=SEk5ZEt0WllETDFYN0RZNTZiUFdhUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 828 2124 6082 | Passcode: 302163 
One tap mobile | +16465588656,,82821246082#,,,,*302163# US 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82821246082?pwd=SEk5ZEt0WllETDFYN0RZNTZiUFdhUT09


Board of Trustees Minutes | May 27, 2021  

 
Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes | May 27th, 2021 

Meeting Held Via Zoom Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic 
 
Board Members Present: Steve Reed, Mark Moeller, Donna Wadsworth, Dan Kelleher, Pete Suttmeier, Mary Irene Lee 
 
Excused: Jerry Griffin, Jessica Kemp 

 
Others Present: Joe Keegan, Stacie Hurwitch, Sarah Maroun, Chris Knight, Erik Harvey, Tara Smith, Diana Fortune, Kyle 
Johnston,  

Board Chair, Steve Reed, called the meeting to order at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Minutes 
Mark Moeller made the motion to accept the April 30th, 2021 meeting minutes as they were presented. Pete Suttmeier 
seconded the motion. The April 30th, 2021 meeting minutes were unanimously approved (6-0-0). 
 
College Senate 
No report 
 
NCCCAP 
No report 
 
CSEA 
No report 
 
Board Chair Report 
Steve Reed reported: 
- Diana Fortune, Director of the College Foundation, will be retiring on October 31st, 2021.  Steve extended, on behalf 

of himself and the board, thanks, and support for the College. Joe Keegan, Steve Reed, Donna Wadsworth and Pete 
Suttmeier had a productive discussion with the Foundation Board as they plan for the future of the Foundation once 
Diana retires. 

 
Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs  
- The board briefly discussed the P-Tech program, which was noted in Sarah’s report. 
- The board spoke of job placement services available for our student graduates. 

   
Board moved to approve the following resolutions: 
Dan Kelleher made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
temporary appointment of Stephanie Wilbur, to the full-time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Nursing Instructor for a 
one-year term for the 2021/22 academic year at an annual salary of $44,602.  This position is currently funded in the 
2021/22 operating budget.  In accordance with the current NCCCAP agreement Article VII-Appointment and Promotions, 
this appointment will expire at the conclusion of the 2021/22 academic year and will not be renewed.  Mary Irene Lee 
seconded the motion.  The motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0). 
 
Dan Kelleher made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the NCCC to 
submit the new certificate program titled Digital Advertising & Design to SUNY and NYSED for approval.  Pete Suttmeier 



Board of Trustees Minutes | May 27, 2021  

seconded the motion.  The motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0) 
 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
submission of a program title change to SUNY and NYSED for NCCC to change the title of the AAS in Computer Graphics 
& Design program to an AAS Digital Arts & Design program. Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion.  The motion was 
approved unanimously (6-0-0) 
- Mary Irene Lee spoke of the discussion the Senate had at their last meeting regarding these changes.  It was 

apparent that shared governance was at the forefront of the meeting. 
 
Vice President for Marketing and Enrollment Management  
Kyle Johnston added to his report: 
- The healthcare program campaign is wrapping up this week. 
- The digital and fine arts campaign starts next week. 
- The entrepreneurial certificate program ad campaign is in design and will be promoted soon. 
- All marketing efforts are designed to interact with all the students.  There is an alarming concern across the country 

and here at North Country that the missing class of 2020 high school graduates, many who did not attend college in 
historic fashion, will remain on the sidelines again. There is also a concern that it and anticipate it again in 2021.  
That led to purchase of graduate names as an additional effort to reach those potential students. Some of the lead 
generation efforts are designed in finding those students in more direct and personal ways, expected to kick-off in 
June 2021.  The board acknowledged these nationwide concerns and discussed these efforts that the College is 
making to help. 

 
Interim CFO: 
Erik Harvey highlighted his report: 
- For the 2020–2021 year,  

o expense reductions committed to have been realized and monies have been returned from State Aid. Thus, we 
are projecting that the College will break even and the fund balance will end at $4.3 million for the year.  

o Review of 2020-2021 enrollment indicated we will be down 7% overall, with in-state numbers flat.  The College 
fared well when compared to our sister schools when it comes to enrollment. 

o Salary and benefits showed a roughly $400,000 reduction cost. 
- For the 2021-2022 budget,  

o there is more work to be done when looking at budget in relation to historical trends and the effects of the 
pandemic.  Current rough projections show an $800,000 deficit.  There are opportunities when looking at the 
big picture to include using federal stimulus funds to recover costs related to COVID-19 pandemic, recovering 
lost revenue, possibility to pay down student dept accounts with the institutional portion of the monies, and a 
policy for remote work and instruction which would reduce expenditures. 

o NYS Aid next year will be $100,000 more this year which puts us behind by $100,000 when compared to last 
year.  The state also created a 98% floor.   

o The College needs to look at initiatives, and in-state enrollment.   
o The College needs to review contractual increases for salaries that the College wants to honor this year, which 

is another expense.   
o shared his projections for the 2021-2022 budget highlighting and showing trends in FTE enrollment, revenues, 

personnel, and non-personnel expenses as far back as 2015-2016. 
o shared the five-year plan that is still in progress as it becomes clearer it will be shared again in June. 

 
The board discussed the reports with Erik as they were presented.  The board voiced their appreciation for the level of 
detail that Erik put into these reports as well. Erik explained to the board the reasoning for requesting the cancellation 
of online fees and to have it waved for 2021-2022.   
 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion to approve the cancellation of online fees for 2021-2022 as it was presented.  Mark 
Moeller seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0) 



Board of Trustees Minutes | May 27, 2021  

 
Mary Irene Lee made a motion to approve the March and April financial reports as they were shared and presented.    
Pete Suttmeier seconded the motion.  The motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0) 
 
Associate Vice President of Student Life 

  No report. 
 

 President’s Report: 
- Joe Keegan thanked the board for their ongoing support as the College continues to navigate through guideline 

changes related to the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
- Joe reported that the Commencement Celebration was spectacular.  He made a special note of thanks for Chris 

Knight and Stacie Hurwitch; as well as the Nursing staff in their efforts of making a memorable nursing pinning 
experience.  

- There were four SUNY Chancellor awards given to those of the College: Pete Nelson (Excellence in Adjunct 
Teaching), Shir Filler (Excellence in Faculty Service), Scott Harwood (Excellence in Professional Service), and the 
Shared Governance Award for the College. Brian O’Connor received an Excellence in Librarianship award from the 
Northern New York Library Network at their May 2021 meeting.  

- SUNY will officially award NCCC for Shared Governance Award on June 7, 2021; a link to the virtual event will be 
shared soon. 

- Essex town supervisors met with Joe Keegan, Sarah Maroun, and Pete Suttmeier to discuss the future of the College 
and anticipated success.  

- Expressed his thanks and appreciation to Diana Fortune for her role with the Foundation.  
- Congressionally Directed Spending requests were made to Senator Schumer Senator Gillibrand to support nursing 

lab upgrades and a non-traditional student scholarship.  These are above and beyond the Community Funding 
Requests made to Rep Stefanik’s office earlier in the semester.  

- Spoke with JMZ on how to tactically use funds awarded to the College in enhancing areas of the College; more news 
will be shared with the board as it becomes available.  

 
Board moved to approve the following resolutions: 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
temporary appointment of Leonard O’Shields, to the full-time, 221-day, exempt appointment as Technology Support 
Specialist for a one-year term for the 2021/22 academic year, at an annual salary of $53,639.  This position is currently 
funded in the 2021/22 operating budget. In accordance with the current NCCCAP agreement Article VII-Appointment 
and Promotions, this appointment will expire at the conclusion of the 2021/22 academic year and will not be renewed.   
Mary Irene Lee seconded the motion.  The motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0). 
 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby approves the 
updated Timely Warning and Emergency Notification Policy.   Mark Moeller seconded the motion.  The motion was 
approved unanimously (6-0-0). 
 
Mark Moeller made a motion that the North Country Community College Board of Trustees hereby supports the 
Women’s Volleyball Discontinuance Proposal as it was presented to the floor.  Dan Kelleher seconded the motion.  The 
motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0). 
 
NCCC Association: 
Joe notified the board that the NCCC Association Board are redesigning positions to better position the Association in its 
work. The Executive Director position will now include direct management of the food service operations and the 
College will return dorm operations staffing exclusively to the Association. More news to follow as it becomes available. 
 
NCCC Foundation: 
No report. 



Board of Trustees Minutes | May 27, 2021  

 
Old Business 
None 
 
New Business 
None 
 
Public Comment  
None 

 
Executive Session 
Mary Irene Lee made the motion to enter Executive Session at 12:00 p.m. in relation to collective bargaining 
negotiations conducted pursuant to Article 14 of the Civil Service Law; and the medical, financial, credit or employment 
history of a particular person or corporation, or matters leading to the appointment, employment, promotion, 
demotion, discipline, suspension, dismissal or removal of a particular person or corporation. Dan Kelleher seconded the 
motion. The motion was passed unanimously (6-0-0).  Joe Keegan was invited to join the meeting at 12:00 p.m. 
 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion to adjourn executive session at 12:45 p.m. Mark Moeller seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously (6-0-0). 

 
Adjourn 
Pete Suttmeier made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Mark Moeller seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously (6-0-0). The Board meeting was adjourned at 12:45 p.m.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Stacie G. Hurwitch 
Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees 

 
6/24/2021 
Motion: 
Second:  
Action: 



 

 

Board of Trustees | 2021-2022 Meeting Schedule 

Friday, September 24, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, October 29, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, November 19, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, December 17, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, January 28, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, February 25, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, March 25, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, April 29, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Thursday, May 26, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Thursday, June 30, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Thursday, July 28, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, August 26, 2022 | 11:00 am 
 
 Unless otherwise noted, all meetings will be held through the Zoom platform. Links can be found every 
month on College's website | https://www.nccc.edu/board-of-trustees/index.html 

 

https://www.nccc.edu/board-of-trustees/index.html


 

 

 

Interim VPAA Report to the Board of Trustees 

June 24, 2021 

 
Please find the following report from the Academic Area below. 

 

 Academic Planning, Programs and Policies  
o Summer and Fall Course Registrations: Continuing and new student registrations are 

underway for the fall semester.  We see interest in both on-campus and online/remote classes.  

As we see COVID-19 restrictions lifting around the state, we continue to watch on-campus 
course enrollments to see where student preference seems to be.  Currently, registrations seem 
to be equally split between online and remote/on-campus courses. 

o Professional Development: We have almost 20 faculty signed up for an On Course workshop 

focused on student success strategies.  While there is a focus on pedagogy for the redesigned first-

year seminar course (College Success Program), the strategies can be integrated across multiple 

courses.  Additional trainings will be offered throughout the summer, including techniques for 

universal course design to help increase student retention. 

o SUNY Mandatory Vaccination Policy: On May 10th, Governor Cuomo announced that SUNY 

will institute a mandatory vaccination policy for on-campus students for fall 2021.  Enactment of 

the policy depends upon full FDA approval of the current vaccines.  More information will 

follow shortly. No new updates. 

 
▪ Continuing Education 

Kim Duffey and the Business Department created a professional skills workshop for 

local businesses.  Kim has been connecting with local businesses in Malone, and 

there seems to be a high degree of interest in the offerings. 

 

▪ Middle States: Self-Study 
▪ Timeline: Self-study virtual visit: October 4-6, 2021. 

▪ Process Updates: We will be working on the Middle States draft throughout 

the summer for a late August submission of the final document to Middle 

States.  The Middle States Steering Committee met for a second writing day 

on Thursday, June 17th to work on revising the draft.  We will meet again 

throughout the next two months to produce the final draft. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

  Grants and Experiments:  

 

Here is a brief update on our grants: 

 
o Second Chance PELL: Summer courses are underway and recruitment for fall courses 

continues.  

o Northern Borders Regional Commission Grant: Planning for the Basic 
Operations course continues.   

o PTECH: On June 15th, we had the honor of attending an awards ceremony for P-
TECH students who finished the high school portion of the program.  We 
continue to collaborate to plan for the fall 2021 semester. 

o Strong Start to Finish:   As noted last month, the funding from this grant provided 
support for the redesign of the College Success Program.  The On Course 
professional development workshop on June 24th, is an additional step in the 
process.  Enrolments in the College Success Program look strong with eight 
courses scheduled for Fall 2021. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Sarah Maroun 
Interim Vice President for Academic Affairs 



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
WHEREAS the Interim Nursing Program Director recommends 

the temporary appointment of Erin Streiff, to the full-
time, 164-day, exempt appointment as Nursing 
Instructor for a one year term for the 2021/22 
academic year, at an annual salary of $44,602, 

 
WHEREAS the Interim VP of Academic Affairs hereby concurs 

in this recommendation,  
 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this 

recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the temporary 
appointment of Erin Streiff, to the full-time, 164-day, 
exempt appointment as Nursing Instructor for a one 
year term for the 2021/22 academic year, at an 
annual salary of $44,602.  

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.  In accordance with the current 
NCCCAP agreement Article VII-Appointment and 
Promotions, this appointment will expire at the 
conclusion of the 2021/22 academic year and will 
not be renewed. 

 
2021/22  
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   











NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
WHEREAS the Mathematics Department Chair recommends 

the temporary appointment of Marcus Painter, to the 
full-time, exempt appointment as Math Instructor for 
the Fall 2021 Semester, at an pro-rated annual 
salary of $20,948, 

 
WHEREAS the Interim VP of Academic Affairs hereby concurs 

in this recommendation,  
 
WHEREAS the President hereby concurs in this 

recommendation, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the temporary 
appointment of Marcus Painter, to the full-time, 
exempt appointment as Math Instructor for the Fall 
2021 Semester, at an pro-rated annual salary of 
$20,948.  

 
This position is currently funded in the 2021/22 
operating budget.  In accordance with the current 
NCCCAP agreement Article VII-Appointment and 
Promotions, this appointment will expire at the 
conclusion of the Fall 2021 Semester and will not be 
renewed. 

 
2021/22  
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   











 
Vice President of Marketing and Enrollment  

Report to the Board of Trustees 

Created June 21, 2021 
 

Enrollment and Financial Aid Team Updates: 

• Major project updates: 

o SLATE CRM (Customer Relationship Management): We are now using the new inquiry form for lead 

generation and our automated responses are popping out of SLATE.  This past week we did our first 

prospect load into SLATE which were students that showed interest through our CampusReel 

project.  We scrubbed the prospects to remove spam and duplicate entries and arrived at 145 

prospects for this first run.  We recently created our first branded marketing emails that we will start 

using this week to follow-up with this group which will hopefully generate some traffic.  Our next 

project will be a list of 2020 and 2021 high school grads from a 5-county area that I will be able to 

report on next month.  Also, we have begun the build of the new SLATE application and hope to be 

testing that out in July. 

o OMNI CMS (Content Management System): Most of the recent work has been to circle back to 

program pages to further develop them out with the new template in mind.  We also created the 

new landing page for the Digital and Fine Arts Campaign (www.nccc.edu/create) and we’ve been 

making updates to the /scholarship, /finish and /fall campaign landing pages in anticipation of those 

upcoming campaigns.  

o North Country Navigator: The enrollment team has been mainly working stages 1-3 in this process 

to push students towards their advising and registration.  Student Affairs and Information 

Technology have recently put together small teams to address the onboarding that will happen in 

stages 4 & 5 which includes updates to the Online Orientation and further development of the IT 

Checklist that students will walk through prior to their start.  The onboarding portion of this project 

will be very heavy in July and August. 

• The Enrollment Team has been busy with an up-tick in application volume due to our aggressive campaign 

schedule that’s been running since this Spring.  We have gained a lot of ground since the very dismal Fall 

semester out-pacing last year’s monthly figures consistently.  At this point, if we can catch last year’s 

numbers, I believe we will look pretty good on our in-take for the Fall.  We’re circling back to do some heavy 

prospecting by reaching out to the CampusReel, Bridge Student, Non-Completer Student and purchased 

leads.  We are also going to be helping to push continuing student registration in the near future. 

• The Financial Aid team has been awarding incoming students at a pace faster than last year even though we 

had a slightly later start (due to many technological upgrades that we wanted in place before awarding this 

year).  The team worked through the SAP process this past week and began awarding to continuing students 

which should help them with their continued financial planning.  We also brought together a team recently 

to take a look at our Opportunity Scholarship process for awarding and we were able to make some nice 

improvements there.  We have already started awarding the scholarship in an ongoing process versus the 

batch awarding that we did last year in September.  This will help students with their decision to return to 

North Country.     

Marketing and Web Team Updates: 

• The “Digital and Fine Arts” campaign (www.nccc.edu/create) has been running throughout June and we 

recently kicked off the “Scholarships Opportunities” campaign (www.nccc.edu/scholarships) that will run 

http://www.nccc.edu/create
http://www.nccc.edu/create
http://www.nccc.edu/scholarships


 
through mid-July.  We’ve also been working with the athletics department to create a plan for the marketing 

funds that have been allocated to them.  We’ve been working on this “Athletics Re-Branding Project” to 

come up with new design concepts that were shared with a smaller group in early June.  I will be conducting 

a webinar on June 30th at 1 o’clock to walk interested employees through our process and will show some 

preliminary designs for feedback. 

• We’ve also been working on four targeted micro-campaigns that will be sent out in June, July and August.  

The four are postcard/email/call campaigns that will target unregistered current students, non-completer 

students, Bridge students and all remaining students in our enrollment pipeline in mid-August. 

• North Country Live 2.0 has been created and delivered to the Administration Team for consideration.  This 

week we moved our attention towards next Fall’s series and we have a number of ideas that we’re floating 

to potential presenters at this point.  We hope to have a finalized list of sessions by the end-of-August so we 

can begin our promotional activities. 

 

Application Pipeline 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Enrollment Pipeline 

 

 

Financial Aid Awarding 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 



 
 

 



SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA 

North Country Community College 
Interim CFO’s Report to the Board of Trustees 

June 24, 2021 

Greetings, 
As always, I hope this report finds you well.  The focus for this month’s report will be on the 2021-22 
budget and 5-year financial plan.  I would also like to ask for the board’s approval of the financial 
statements for the month ending May 31, 2021. 

2020-21 Financial Statements May (for review and approval) 
• The fund balance is expected to finish August 31, 2021 at $4.3 million maintaining the 28-29%

of normal net operating cost ratio.

2020-21 Forecast (no material changes from last forecast) 
• Included is an updated financial forecast for the year ending August 31, 2021, as of June.
• Enrollment declines related to the pandemic are being mitigated by expense savings.
• There is projected to be a $20K surplus for 2020-21.
• Latest enrollment trends:

o Projected total FTE of 980 is 70 or 7% less than budget.
o Projected In/Out of state FTE of 612 is 23 or 4% less than budget.
o Projected Concurrent Enrollment FTE of 234 is 16 or 6% less than budget.
o Projected Pell Prison FTE of 133 is 32 or 19% less than budget.

• Projected Revenue:
o $500K loss of tuition and fee related revenue due to enrollment declines.
o $200K increase in revenue vs. budget due to more part time enrollment vs. full time.  Part 

time students pay more per credit hour.
o $205K NYS aid cut included, which is 5%.

• Projected Expenses:
o $400K reduction of Salary and Benefit expenses for reduced casual labor pools, early 

retirements, and not filling open positions.
o $95K reduction of Travel costs reduced due to mostly online delivery of instruction.
o $50K reduction of Utility costs reduced do to mostly online delivery of instruction.
o $14K reduction of recruiting related travel expenses.



Interim CFO’s Report to the Board of Trustees (continued) 

2021-22 NCCC Budget 
• Highlights 

o In-State tuition, as well as college and course fee rates are frozen at the 20-21 level.  If 
NCCC had increased tuition rates 3% in 2021-22 it would increase revenue by $100K. 

o In April, NYS passed its annual budget and NYS aid to colleges was restored.  NCCC 
will receive the better of a $50/FTE increase in base aid or a floor of 98% of prior year 
base aid.  NCCC will use the $50/FTE base aid increase.  All state aid, including rental 
and low enrollment, is expected to increase $110K vs. 2020-21. 

o We take no solace in this but, NCCC’s enrollment decline during the pandemic was not 
as drastic as most of the other community colleges in New York State. 

o Out of State tuition was reduced to 1.5x In-State rate – less scholarships will be awarded 
to mitigate the reduction. 

• Risks 
o Projected in-State FA21 enrollment is 9.5% worse than FA20 at this same point in time. 
o On campus costs are being restored such as casual labor pools, travel, utilities, and 

instructional supplies. 
o Contractual labor increases as well as rate increases for medical and retirement benefits. 

• Opportunities 
o Using federal stimulus funding to reimburse for 

 The cost of increased labor pools related to additional class sections to create 
social distancing due to the pandemic. 

 Lost revenues related to tuition and fees. 
 Paying students in need accounts down that would otherwise hit bad debt and 

leave a mark on the student’s credit. 
o In-State enrollment impacts if it improves as we get closer to FA21. 

 $100K increase in revenue at 7% in-state enrollment decline for FA21 vs FA20. 
 $175K increase in revenue at 5% in-state enrollment decline for FA21 vs FA20. 
 $250K increase in revenue at 3% in-state enrollment decline for FA21 vs FA20. 

o Extension of second chance Pell and full Pell restoration by 7/21/23. 
o Instituting a remote work policy that would reduce operating costs. 

 
5-Year Financial Plan 

o Fund Balance is projected to be $4.3 million as of August 31, 2021, 28-30% of NOC. 
o Fund Balance is projected to be $2.1 million as of August 31, 2025, 13% of NOC. 
o Projection assumptions can be found on 5-year plan report. 

 
Best regards, 
 

 
 

Erik Harvey 
Interim CFO 
 



2021-22 2020-21 2020-21

Budget Forecast Budget

REVENUES

Tuition - In-State 4,080,202$ 4,057,365$ 3,970,572$  22,837$       1%

Tuition - Out-of-State 396,000      411,761        747,053      (15,761)        -4%

Tuition - Concurrent Enrollment 555,000      520,368      150,000       34,632        7%

College and Course Fees 1,141,021      1,148,831     1,209,821    (7,810)         -1%

Sponsors' Contribution 2,380,000   2,380,000   2,380,000   -                  0%

Chargebacks 710,000       709,547      695,600     453             0%

State Aid 3,954,516    3,845,658   4,050,609  108,858       3%

Contributions & Other Income 1,172,840     1,127,840     1,153,500     45,000        4%

  Total Revenues 14,389,579  14,201,370   14,357,155   188,209      1%

EXPENDITURES

Salaries 7,190,717     6,894,534   7,134,020    296,183       4%

Benefits

  Payroll Taxes 550,090      509,002      545,752      41,088        8%

  Medical 2,011,394     1,910,632     2,057,012    100,762       5%

  Retirement 696,646     677,111        620,050      19,535         3%

  Other 116,180        72,343         107,535       43,837        61%

Total Benefits 3,374,310    3,169,088   3,330,350    205,222      6%

Equipment 15,000         34,050        34,050        (19,050)       -56%

Contractual

  Rental 1,557,992    1,546,280    1,448,480   11,712           1%

  Utilities 301,500       251,500       301,500       50,000        20%

  Maintenance 165,300       162,150        167,150        3,150           2%

  Office & General Supplies 52,220        69,810        69,810        (17,590)       -25%

  Advertising 184,300       202,050      206,050      (17,750)        -9%

  Professional Services 112,500        104,200       118,200       8,300          8%

  Information Technology 295,300      291,370       291,370       3,930          1%

  Library and Instructional Supplies 354,060      336,410       347,510       17,650         5%

  Scholarships 275,000      384,877      485,000      (109,877)     -29%

  Scholarships - Concurrent Enrollment 414,105       388,265      -                  25,840        7%

  Travel 75,000        7,078          101,550        67,923        960%

  Property & Liability Insurance 146,000      143,805       145,000       2,195           2%

  Miscellaneous 172,615        195,807       207,817       (23,192)        -12%

Total Contractual 4,105,892    4,083,601   3,889,437   22,291         1%

  Total Expenditures 14,685,919  14,181,274   14,387,856  504,645      4%

Transfer from Fund Balance 296,341       -                  30,701         296,341       -

Surplus / (Deficit) -$                 20,096$      -$                 (20,096)$    -100%

2021-22 BUDGET

21-22 OPERATING BUDGET

vs. 20-21 Forecast

21-22 More (Less)



2021-22

Budget

REVENUES

State Approved Match 150,000$        

County Portion 100,000          

Chargeback Revenues 50,000           

Total Revenues 300,000$        

PROJECTS

Critical Infrastructure and Maintenance Upgrades

Academics - Laerdal - SimPad PLUS units and LLEAP for Nursing 9,591              

Academics - 3D Printers for Art Classes 8,498             

Student Life - Classroom Work Table upgrades 8,285              

Student Life - Study lounge and Art furniture upgrades 23,800            

Student Life - Residence Halls Generator 49,826           

Information Technology - College Wide Phone System Upgrade 85,000           

Facilities - Vestibules; Doors and Locks; Security Cameras Phase II 45,000           

Facilities - Gymnasium Floor Refurbishment and Fire Alarm System Upgrade 30,000           

Facilities - HVAC, Roofing, and Flooring Emergency Crtiical Maintenance 20,000           

Facilities - Tractor for Snow Removal, Mowing, etc. replacement 20,000           

Total Expenditures 300,000$        

Net Surplus/(Deficit) -$                

2021-22 BUDGET

21-22 CAPITAL BUDGET



20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25

FTE Students

In-State 581                 554                 541                 532                 536                 

Out-of-State 31                   50                   60                   70                   75                   

Subtotal In/Out-of-State 612                 604                 601                 602                 611                 

Concurrent Enrollment (bridge) 234                 250                 255                 255                 255                 

Subtotal Core Operating 847                 854                 856                 857                 866                 

Pell Program 133                 150                 150                 150                 150                 

Total FTE 980                 1,004             1,006             1,007             1,016             

in thousands

Unrestricted Fund

Revenues 14,201$         14,390$         14,780$         14,925$         15,146$         

Expenses 14,181           14,686           15,124           15,564           16,025           

Operating Surplus (Deficit) 20                   (296)               (344)               (638)               (880)               

Non-Operating -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Unrestricted Fund Surplus (Deficit) 20$                 (296)$             (344)$             (638)$             (880)$             

Fund Balance Beginning 9/1 4,284$           4,304$           4,007$           3,663$           3,025$           

Changes to Net Position 20                   (296)               (344)               (638)               (880)               

Fund Balance Ending 8/31 4,304$           4,007$           3,663$           3,025$           2,145$           

Fund Balance NOC % 30.3% 27.3% 24.2% 19.4% 13.4%

Assumptions:
FTE's  In State declines by 5% in 21-22 vs. 20-21 pandemic levels.

Out-of-State gets back up to pre-pandemic levels in 24-25.

Tuition 0% Increase year over year after 20-21.  (3% = $100K revenue)

Fees Assumed same rates as 20-21, proportionate to FTEs.

County Aid Assumed to remain flat.

State Aid

Salaries 2.5% increase per year.

Benefits 7% increase per year.

Contractual .5% increase per year.

Prison Program

Donations

North Country Community College
5-Year Financial Plan

For the 5 years ending August 31, 2025

$100K from NCCC Foundation in each years 20-21 and 21-22, not 

included above, placed in restricted funds to help drive non traditional 

student enrollment.

Assumed to continue - favorable legislation has been passed ensuring 

Pell extension by 7/21/23.

Rental aid increases 2% each year to correspond with 2% rent increase 

to NCCC Foundation

Concurrent enrollment (bridge students) and the Pell prison program 

bounce back to normal pre-pandemic levels 21-25.

Base aid rate includes the greater benefit of $50/FTE in annual 

increments or the 98% floor rule 2021-25.  NYS Restored 21-22.



 

 
N

or
th

 C
ou

nt
ry

 C
om

m
un

it
y 

C
ol

le
ge

 
Sp

on
so

re
d 

by
 F

ra
nk

lin
 a

nd
 E

ss
ex

 C
ou

nt
ie

s 
 

O
P

ER
A

TI
N

G
 F

U
N

D
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

R
EP

O
R

T 
A

s 
of

 M
ay

 3
1,

 2
02

1 
 

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
 T

O
 T

H
E 

BO
A

RD
 O

F 
TR

U
ST

EE
S 

Ju
ne

 2
4,

 2
02

1 
 

ER
IK

 H
A

RV
EY

 
In

te
ri

m
 C

FO
 

     
 



C
u

rr
en

t 
Ye

ar
P

ri
o

r 
Ye

ar
C

u
rr

en
t 

Ye
ar

A
n

n
u

al
YT

D
1

9
-2

0
 A

ct
u

al
%

 o
f

A
ct

u
al

A
ct

u
al

In
c 

(D
ec

)
B

u
d

ge
t

A
ct

u
al

M
 (

L)
B

u
d

ge
t

A
ss

e
ts

R
e

ve
n

u
e

s

C
as

h
3

,8
4

4
,2

0
8

$
   

  
4

,9
0

5
,7

4
8

$
   

  
(1

,0
6

1
,5

4
0

)
$

   
 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 R
ec

ei
va

b
le

-S
tu

d
en

ts
7

2
8

,5
5

1
   

   
   

 
2

7
5

,0
5

5
   

   
   

 
4

5
3

,4
9

6
   

   
   

 
Tu

it
io

n
 &

 F
ee

s
5

,3
3

0
,3

9
3

$
   

  
6

,1
2

3
,7

5
7

$
   

  
7

9
3

,3
6

3
$

   
   

   
 

1
1

5
%

D
u

e 
Fr

o
m

 N
C

C
C

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
4

3
9

,0
8

4
   

   
   

 
2

4
2

,3
3

6
   

   
   

 
1

9
6

,7
4

8
   

   
   

 
Sp

o
n

so
rs

' C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
2

,3
8

0
,0

0
0

   
   

 
1

,7
7

6
,6

6
7

   
   

 
(6

0
3

,3
3

3
)

   
   

   
  

7
5

%

D
u

e 
Fr

o
m

 N
C

C
C

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 (
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s)
1

,4
0

3
,9

7
7

   
   

 
8

8
0

,4
8

7
   

   
   

 
5

2
3

,4
9

0
   

   
   

 
C

h
ar

ge
b

ac
ks

6
9

5
,6

0
0

   
   

   
 

6
8

4
,5

4
7

   
   

   
 

(1
1

,0
5

3
)

   
   

   
   

  
9

8
%

D
u

e 
Fr

o
m

 O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
s

2
5

9
,7

2
9

   
   

   
 

5
8

3
,9

4
8

   
   

   
 

(3
2

4
,2

1
9

)
   

   
   

O
u

t-
o

f-
St

at
e 

Tu
it

io
n

7
4

7
,0

5
3

   
   

   
 

4
1

1
,7

6
1

   
   

   
 

(3
3

5
,2

9
2

)
   

   
   

  
5

5
%

D
u

e 
Fr

o
m

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

ts
 (

St
at

e 
&

 F
ed

 F
in

 A
id

)
9

6
7

,7
4

3
   

   
   

 
6

3
9

,5
8

2
   

   
   

 
3

2
8

,1
6

0
   

   
   

 
St

at
e 

A
id

4
,0

5
0

,6
0

9
   

   
 

3
,0

7
5

,2
2

7
   

   
 

(9
7

5
,3

8
2

)
   

   
   

  
7

6
%

P
re

p
ai

d
 E

xp
en

se
s

2
3

4
,1

3
2

   
   

   
 

5
1

,7
7

8
   

   
   

   
 

1
8

2
,3

5
4

   
   

   
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

1
,1

5
3

,5
0

0
   

   
 

8
5

1
,3

8
5

   
   

   
 

(3
0

2
,1

1
5

)
   

   
   

  
7

4
%

To
ta

l A
ss

e
ts

7
,8

7
7

,4
2

4
$

   
  

7
,5

7
8

,9
3

5
$

   
  

2
9

8
,4

8
9

$
   

   
  

To
ta

l R
e

ve
n

u
e

s
1

4
,3

5
7

,1
5

5
$

   
1

2
,9

2
3

,3
4

3
$

   
(1

,4
3

3
,8

1
2

)
$

   
   

9
0

%

Li
ab

ili
ti

e
s

Ex
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 P
ay

ab
le

1
5

,2
7

2
$

   
   

   
 

(2
0

,8
0

6
)

$
   

   
   

3
6

,0
7

8
$

   
   

   
 

P
ay

ro
ll 

&
 B

en
ef

it
s 

Li
ab

ili
ti

es
6

6
,5

0
8

   
   

   
   

 
9

8
,4

3
9

   
   

   
   

 
(3

1
,9

3
1

)
   

   
   

  
Sa

la
ri

es
7

,1
3

4
,0

2
0

$
   

  
5

,0
4

4
,7

1
0

$
   

  
2

,0
8

9
,3

1
0

$
   

   
 

7
1

%

D
u

e 
to

 N
C

C
C

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
 (

R
o

o
m

, M
ea

ls
, B

o
o

ks
)

7
5

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
4

0
2

,3
3

3
   

   
   

 
(4

0
1

,5
7

9
)

   
   

   
P

ay
ro

ll 
Ta

xe
s

5
4

5
,7

5
2

   
   

   
 

3
4

6
,6

7
7

   
   

   
 

1
9

9
,0

7
5

   
   

   
   

 
6

4
%

D
u

e 
to

 N
C

C
C

 F
o

u
n

d
at

io
n

 (
R

en
t)

8
8

6
,3

7
5

   
   

   
 

3
1

4
,4

1
2

   
   

   
 

5
7

1
,9

6
3

   
   

   
 

M
ed

ic
al

2
,0

5
7

,0
1

2
   

   
 

1
,3

9
5

,4
7

4
   

   
 

6
6

1
,5

3
8

   
   

   
   

 
6

8
%

D
u

e 
to

 O
th

er
 F

u
n

d
s

6
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

2
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

(6
0

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
et

ir
em

en
t

6
2

0
,0

5
0

   
   

   
 

4
7

5
,9

5
8

   
   

   
 

1
4

4
,0

9
3

   
   

   
   

 
7

7
%

D
u

e 
to

 R
et

ir
em

en
t

2
2

7
,1

3
6

   
   

   
 

2
8

9
,7

5
3

   
   

   
 

(6
2

,6
1

7
)

   
   

   
  

O
th

er
1

0
7

,5
3

5
   

   
   

 
1

7
4

,8
1

8
   

   
   

 
(6

7
,2

8
3

)
   

   
   

   
  

1
6

3
%

C
o

m
p

en
sa

te
d

 A
b

se
n

ce
s

2
8

9
,6

7
2

   
   

   
 

2
5

6
,3

6
2

   
   

   
 

3
3

,3
1

0
   

   
   

   
 

Eq
u

ip
m

en
t

3
4

,0
5

0
   

   
   

   
 

2
4

,4
4

1
   

   
   

   
 

9
,6

0
9

   
   

   
   

   
  

7
2

%

O
th

er
 L

ia
b

ili
ti

es
2

8
2

,7
5

7
   

   
   

 
4

7
6

,4
3

2
   

   
   

 
(1

9
3

,6
7

5
)

   
   

   
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Le

as
es

1
,4

4
8

,4
8

0
   

   
 

1
,1

5
9

,7
4

9
   

   
 

2
8

8
,7

3
1

   
   

   
   

 
8

0
%

U
ti

lit
ie

s
3

0
1

,5
0

0
   

   
   

 
2

1
0

,1
1

6
   

   
   

 
9

1
,3

8
4

   
   

   
   

   
7

0
%

To
ta

l L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
1

,7
6

8
,5

3
4

$
   

  
1

,8
1

7
,0

4
5

$
   

  
(4

8
,5

1
1

)
$

   
   

   
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

1
6

7
,1

5
0

   
   

   
 

9
6

,5
1

9
   

   
   

   
 

7
0

,6
3

1
   

   
   

   
   

5
8

%

O
ff

ic
e 

&
 G

en
er

al
 S

u
p

p
lie

s
6

9
,8

1
0

   
   

   
   

 
2

7
,2

4
0

   
   

   
   

 
4

2
,5

7
0

   
   

   
   

   
3

9
%

M
o

n
th

 E
n

d
 E

q
u

it
y

6
,1

0
8

,8
9

0
$

   
  

5
,7

6
1

,8
9

0
$

   
  

A
d

ve
rt

is
in

g
2

0
6

,0
5

0
   

   
   

 
7

6
,0

3
9

   
   

   
   

 
1

3
0

,0
1

1
   

   
   

   
 

3
7

%

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s

1
1

8
,2

0
0

   
   

   
 

4
2

,4
4

8
   

   
   

   
 

7
5

,7
5

2
   

   
   

   
   

3
6

%

To
ta

l L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s 
&

 E
q

u
it

y
7

,8
7

7
,4

2
4

$
   

  
7

,5
7

8
,9

3
5

$
   

  
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 T

ec
h

n
o

lo
gy

2
9

1
,3

7
0

   
   

   
 

2
4

6
,0

5
0

   
   

   
 

4
5

,3
2

0
   

   
   

   
   

8
4

%

Li
b

ra
ry

 &
 In

st
ru

ct
io

n
al

 S
u

p
p

lie
s

3
4

7
,5

1
0

   
   

   
 

2
0

4
,0

1
0

   
   

   
 

1
4

3
,5

0
0

   
   

   
   

 
5

9
%

Fu
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
 S

u
m

m
ar

y
Sc

h
o

la
rs

h
ip

s
4

8
5

,0
0

0
   

   
   

 
8

5
7

,3
3

2
   

   
   

 
(3

7
2

,3
3

2
)

   
   

   
  

1
7

7
%

P
re

lim
 F

u
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
o

f 
0

9
/0

1
/2

0
4

,2
8

3
,5

7
8

$
   

  
Tr

av
el

1
0

1
,5

5
0

   
   

   
 

2
,3

0
9

   
   

   
   

   
9

9
,2

4
1

   
   

   
   

   
2

%

Es
ti

m
at

ed
 2

0
-2

1
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

(D
ef

ic
it

)
2

0
,0

9
7

$
   

   
   

 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 &
 L

ia
b

ili
ty

 In
s.

1
4

5
,0

0
0

   
   

   
 

1
0

4
,0

4
7

   
   

   
 

4
0

,9
5

3
   

   
   

   
   

7
2

%

P
ro

je
ct

ed
 F

u
n

d
 B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
o

f 
0

9
/0

1
/2

1
 1

4
,3

0
3

,6
7

5
$

   
  

M
is

ce
lla

n
eo

u
s

2
0

7
,8

1
7

   
   

   
 

2
1

5
,6

8
9

   
   

   
 

(7
,8

7
2

)
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

0
4

%

To
ta

l E
xp

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
1

4
,3

8
7

,8
5

6
$

   
1

0
,7

0
3

,6
2

5
$

   
3

,6
8

4
,2

3
1

$
   

   
 

7
4

%

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g 
Su

rp
lu

s 
(D

e
fi

ci
t)

(3
0

,7
0

1
)

$
   

   
   

2
,2

1
9

,7
1

8
$

   
  

2
,2

5
0

,4
1

9
$

   
   

 
-7

3
3

0
%

N
o

n
-O

p
er

at
in

g 
A

ct
iv

it
y

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
7

,2
2

6
   

   
   

   
 

6
7

,2
2

6
   

   
   

   
   

N
A

To
ta

l F
u

n
d

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
(D

e
fi

ci
t)

(3
0

,7
0

1
)

$
   

   
   

2
,2

8
6

,9
4

3
$

   
  

2
,3

1
7

,6
4

5
$

   
   

 
-7

5
4

9
%

N
o

rt
h

 C
o

u
n

tr
y 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
o

lle
ge

B
a

la
n

ce
 S

h
e

et

M
A

Y
 3

1
, 2

0
2

1

N
o

rt
h

 C
o

u
n

tr
y 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
o

lle
ge

R
ev

e
n

u
es

 &
 E

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
s

M
A

Y
 3

1
, 2

0
2

1

1 
G

A
S 

7
5

 is
 a

n
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g 
an

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
ep

o
rt

in
g 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 r
eq

u
ir

in
g 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

em
p

lo
ye

rs
 t

o
 

m
ea

su
re

 a
n

d
 r

ep
o

rt
 "

O
th

er
 P

o
st

-E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 
B

en
ef

it
s"

.  
C

u
rr

en
tl

y,
 N

C
C

C
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 

$
1

5
,8

5
6

,5
4

8
. 

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

C
O

N
FI

D
EN

TI
A

L



FTE

In-State 575                  581                  6                       1%

Out of State 60                    31                    (29)                   -92%

In/Out of State FTE 635                  612                  (23)                   -4%

Concurrent Enrollment 250                  234                  (16)                   -7%

Core Operating FTE 885                  847                  (38)                   -5%

Pell Prison Program 165                  133                  (32)                   -24%

Total FTE 1,050               980                  (70)                   -7%

Unrestricted Fund   (in thousands)

Revenues

Tuition 5,107$             5,228$             121$                2%

Fees 1,210               1,160               (49)                   -4%

Sponsor's Contribution 2,380               2,380               -                   0%

Chargebacks to Other Counties 696                  710                  14                    2%

State Aid 4,051               3,846               (205)                 -5%

Contributions & Other Income 1,154               1,128               (26)                   -2%

Reserve for Bad Debt (239)                 (250)                 (11)                   4%

Total Revenues 14,357            14,201            (156)                 -1%

Expenditures

Salaries 7,134               6,895               (239)                 -3%

Payroll Taxes 514                  478                  (37)                   -7%

Medical 2,025               1,881               (144)                 -7%

Retirement 600                  655                  55                    9%

Other 191                  156                  (35)                   -18%

Equipment 34                    34                    -                   0%

Facility Leases 1,448               1,546               98                    7%

Utilities 302                  252                  (50)                   -17%

Maintenance 167                  162                  (5)                     -3%

Office & General Supplies 70                    70                    -                   0%

Advertising 206                  202                  (4)                     -2%

Professional Services 118                  104                  (14)                   -12%

Information Technology 291                  291                  -                   0%

Library & Instructional Supplies 188                  176                  (11)                   -6%

Scholarships 485                  385                  (100)                 -21%

Scholarships - Concurrent Enrollment -                   388                  388                  NA

Travel 64                    6                       (57)                   -90%

Property & Liability Ins. 145                  144                  (1)                     -1%

Miscellaneous 406                  357                  (49)                   -12%

Total Expenditures 14,388            14,181            (207)                 -1%

Unrestricted Fund Surplus / (Deficit) (31)$                 20$                  51$                  165%

Budget Forecast

More (Less)

vs. Budget

North Country Community College
June Forecast

For the year ending August 31, 2021

Budget Forecast

More (Less)

vs. Budget

BUSINESS CONFIDENTIAL



 

  
    

SARANAC LAKE | MALONE | TICONDEROGA  
  

North Country Community College   
President’s Report to the Board of Trustees  

June 24th, 2021 
 
Greetings to you all,  
 
I hope this finds you and yours well. The long days and short nights of the season are 
most welcome as are the waning of many of the COVID-era restrictions. While we are 
not ready to celebrate and let down our guard, particularly given the emergence of new 
and more transmittable variants of the virus, there is a collective sigh of relief and 
optimism for better days to come.  
 
The first summer session will soon be drawing to a close, and the second one slated to 
begin in early July. This is the season of reviewing the year gone by, taking note of 
lessons learned, and preparing for the new one. Recent guidance from New York State 
regarding relaxation of many COVID protocols has us readying ourselves for reopening 
the campuses in a much less restrictive way. This is most welcome news.  
 
The 2021-2022 proposed budget will be in front of you this month for your review as 
will a new Campus Access Policy, along with many other items and updates. We look 
forward to being with you soon.  
 
Please find updates from our area below. Respectfully yours,  
 
Joe  
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 Board Matters 

 Board Appointments: we have heard that some of our community college 
colleagues have begun to see new BoT appointments from the Governor’s 
Office and are hopeful that we will hear about the status of those that we 
recommended.  

 Board Bios and Photos: Many thanks to all who have submitted photos and 
bios to Stacie Hurwitch, Executive Assistant to the President. If you have not 
yet done so, please let us know if you need any help.  

 Board Policies: Stacie Hurwitch is continuing to inventory of all approved 
Board of Trustees policies since the founding of the College.  

 
 Campus and External Relations  

Here are some highlights of events, contacts, and interactions that I have 
participated in over the last few weeks:   
 



Date  With  Location  
01 June 21 NCCCAP Negotiations Meeting  Teams 
01 June 21 Diana Fortune, NCCC Foundation  Teams 
01 June 21 Franklin County Community Services Board Webex 
02 June 21 NCCC Foundation Meeting Zoom 
02 June 21 BoT/Foundation Joint Workgroup Zoom 
03 June 21 Association Dorms Walkthrough SL 
07 June 21 NYCCAP Meeting Onon CC 
07 June 21 SUNY Voices Shared Governance Award Recognition Zoom 
08 June 21 Joe Pete Wilson, Essex County Liaison  Zoom 
08 June 21 Nicholas Hunt-Bull, Paul Smith’s College Provost SL 
09 June 21 CV-TEC: New Visions Applied Engineering Planning Zoom 
09 June 21 MSCHE Planning   Teams 
09 June 21 “Value of Higher Education” – Insider Higher Ed Zoom 
14 June 21 Rob Rathbun, NCCC Association  SL 
14 June 21 Association Dorms Walkthrough and Planning  SL 
15 June 21 Tenee Casaccio and Karin Greene, JMZ Architects Zoom 
15 June 21 P-TECH Graduation Ceremony Malone 
16 June 21 HEERF Webinar Zoom 
16 June 21 NCCC Audit Committee  Zoom 
17 June 21 MSCHE Steering Committee Writing Day Zoom 
17 June 21 President’s Council Teams 
17 June 21 Aspire Technologies Teams 
17 June 21 AdkAction Broadband Zoom 
17 June 21 COVID-19 Task Force Teams 
21 June 21 Essex County Finance Committee Meeting E-town 
22 June 21 Joe Pete Wilson, Essex County Liaison  Zoom 
23 June 21 NYCCAP Advocacy Meeting Zoom 
23 June 21 NCCCAP LMR Teams 
23 June 21 MSCHE Steering Committee Writing Day Zoom 
24 June 21 NCCC Retirees Breakfast Zoom 

 
 Fall 2021 Enrollment 

The Enrollment team continues its efforts recruiting students including targeted 
marketing campaigns including the Opportunity Scholarship, program-specific 
marketing, hosting on-campus visits, and developing strategies to help continuing 
students register. SUNY has rolled out a digital recruitment plan for the community 
colleges once again this year.  
  

 20-21 College Budget 
As Erik Harvey (Interim CFO) reported last month, projections for this year’s actual 
spending relative to budget is much more favorable than we could have predicted at 
the start of the year and suggest that we will end the year without a deficit and likely 
to add to the fund balance. This in the result of a mixture of College efforts (i.e. 
reducing staffing costs, prudent spending, and cost reductions related to being 
mostly online) combined with federal stimulus funding that reversed unbudgeted 
deficits due to COVID-19.   
 



 2021-2022 Budget 
Erik Harvey will present the proposed 2021-2022 budget for you today which 
projects a $225,000 deficit. While our desire is to present a balanced budget, much 
of this projected deficit is due to the uncertainty that remains as we emerge from 
COVID-19 including whether in-state enrollment will rebound. A contributing factor 
is whether graduating high schoolers will follow the path that last year’s did, which 
involved sitting out or not returning at the rate we are previously accustomed to. We 
also expect to see some costs return as we return with a stronger on-campus 
presence. Thus, we are using conservative modeling to predict and build the budget. 
If there is a silver lining, the federal stimulus funding allows us to reimburse 
ourselves for lost revenue and other expenses, which are projected to be at least 
$225,000, thus negating the real impact of the proposed deficit on the fund balance.  
 
In other budget-related news:  
 Expanded Pell Eligibility to Incarcerated Individuals: Second Chance Pell 

rules have been relaxed further to include removing the requirement to have 
registered for the Selective Service, and no longer restricting participation if 
one were convicted of a drug-related offense while receiving Pell. Whether 
these will have direct impact on our program remains to be seen.  

 Supplemental CARES Funding (CARES II): The majority of the $555,641 in 
funding for students has been distributed. The remaining $1.66M 
(institutional portion) is being used to defray expenses associated with 
coronavirus including lost revenue, reimbursement for expenses, technology 
costs associated with a transition to distance education, faculty and staff 
trainings, and payroll. We have contracted to update classrooms on each 
campus to support high-flex instruction for the start of the Fall 2021 semester.  

 American Rescue Plan (CARES III): We have been learning more about the 
options available regarding the 3rd round of stimulus funding, the American 
Rescue Plan, and will be mapping out those plans shortly. Our award was for 
$3,842,198 allocated as follows:   
 Student Portion: $1,929,417 
 Institutional Portion: $1,912,781 

 
 Foundation 

With the retirement of the Foundation Director, Diana Fortune, in Fall 2021, the 
administration is working with a small group of members of the Board of Trustees 
and the Foundation Board to consider how to fill the vacancy in a way that aligns 
with the College’s strategic plan.  Chairman Reed met with President’s Council last 
week to present the proposed changes that the BoT and the Foundation Board have 
been discussing, which include providing administrative support for the Foundation 
which is expected to help broaden the philanthropic giving to the College.    
 

 Strategic Plan   
Our administrative team continues to prioritize initiatives and explore how various 
departments/areas can contribute to help put those into action. Some initiatives 
underway including:  



 Ongoing Professional Development (there are several professional 
development opportunities for the faculty over the summer break)  

 New Academic Programs (the Entrepreneurship Certificate approved by 
NYSED is queued up for marketing by Kyle Johnston; the AS Business 
Administration – Healthcare Administration track remains at NYSED; new 
programs in graphics and animation, and healthcare related fields are being 
explored; Perkins funding was requested to continue to support Selina LeMay 
Klippel’s position as a CTE Coordinator) 

 Create 1-2 state-of-the-art classrooms to support high-flex model of teaching 
and learning (this work is underway and expected to start in mid-July and be 
completed by fall) 

 Streamlining and improving the College’s student onboarding: through the 
North Country Navigator program is underway.  

 Submitted a second grant request to modernize Nursing Labs on all three 
campuses as well as a grant for additional scholarship funding for non-
traditional students, and  

 Alternative revenue streams: exploring how the Foundation and College can 
rethink the Foundation and its role in helping the College remain sustainable.  

 Improved Institutional Research capabilities: Initial steps include 
standardized data needs for all academic programs as part of ongoing 
program assessment; 

 Reinvest in health careers and health science programs: aforementioned 
nursing lab modernization and new academic program work.  

 
 Opportunities and Partnerships 

 Community Projects Funding requests: no update on the status of this 
request to update our nursing labs proposal. Rep. Stefanik moved it forward 
to the House Appropriations Committee as one of ten projects from her office. 
The Appropriations Committee set maximum award amounts to $1M, thus 
our request was reduced to $975,000. The original request had been $1.8M. 

 Congressionally Directed Spending proposals: no update on the status of two 
requests submitted to Sen. Gillibrand and Sen. Schumer. The first was the 
nursing labs proposal for the full $1.8M, and the second was for $100K to 
fund non-traditional scholarships for the 2022 year. Both align with our 
strategic plan objectives. 

 Perkins Grant (2021-2022): we submitted our Perkins Grant application last 
week aligned with previous assessments and with strategic objectives in areas 
related to new academic programs (CTE Coordinator), improved IR reporting 
on alumni, career services supports, and professional development for faculty 
members related to supporting diverse learning styles. Our funding for 2021-
2022 looks to be increased slightly to $143K.  

 The North Country CC-Workforce Development Partnership: no updates.  
 

 COVID-19 Matters 
With the Governor’s announcement last week relaxing many COVID-19 era 
restrictions, the landscape for our operations and planning has shifted significantly. 
Here is a brief summary of what we are know and are planning for: 



 Reopening the Campuses: We are aiming to reopen the campuses for 
students, employees, and the public on Monday, June 28th, 2021.  

 Vaccine Requirements: SUNY will be requiring students studying on campus 
in Fall 2021 to be fully vaccinated, provided that one or more of the vaccines 
receive full approval from the FDA. There are no similar requirements for 
Summer 2021.  

 Protocols and Practices:  
 COVID-19 Cleaning and Sanitation Protocols: these are relaxed. We will 

assess which have value, retain those and no longer perform the others.  
 COVID-19 Daily Screening: no longer required for employees, students, or 

visitors.   
 COVID-19 Mandatory Testing: no longer required for those who are 

vaccinated. We propose scaling back testing significantly to offer it less 
frequently (i.e. once every tw0 weeks to those who wish to be tested) or 
possibly discontinue entirely.  

 Masking: New York State is still requiring unvaccinated individuals to 
wear masks and conduct social distancing. We trust our employees will do 
what is right as they have demonstrated throughout the course of the 
pandemic and thus, we will use the honor system. This will apply to 
students and visitors this summer as well. Disposable masks will be 
provided at select entryways.  

 Social Distancing: New York has retained social distancing guidelines of 6’ 
for those who are not vaccinated inside all College buildings and outside 
on any College property where social distancing cannot be maintained. As 
with masking, we are trusting our employees and colleagues to follow 
those guidelines on the honor system.  

 Gatekeepers/Monitors: We will not employ gatekeepers or monitors. We 
trust our colleagues will do what is right to keep others safe, including 
remaining home if symptomatic and wearing a mask if unvaccinated.  

 COVID-19 Task Force: The Task Force met last week and much of the focus 
was on the communications plan for Summer 21 related to on-campus 
availability. As the guidance and our planning for Fall 21 comes into greater 
focus, we will host a campus-wide meeting to share what we know.  

 
 Facilities Planning 

 Facilities Inventory: Our Facilities Department is fine-tuning the inventory 
our campuses, identifying the current state of the infrastructure and 
cataloging it uniformly.  

 Classroom and IT Upgrades: A working group from the College met with 
Aspire Technologies, the contractor who will be installing the high-flex 
academic technology in six (6) classrooms. There is work on our end to 
prepare for the installation which is set to begin in July.   

 JMZ: We met again with JMZ Architects regarding three facilities projects: 
the SL science labs, the nursing labs, and our HVAC needs on all campuses. 
JMZ has an understanding of our college and community through earlier 
work on our SL Facilities Master Plan.  I hoping to have a proposal for the 
BoT meeting to review.  



 Information Technology (IT)  
 IT Restructuring: Scott Harwood, Associate Dean of Information Technology 

and Institutional Research, has implemented several changes in the IT area:  
 hiring a Student Support professional who joins us in August,  
 preparing to hire a Help Desk Technician to support our Malone campus 

students, faculty, and staff, and 
 preparing to fill a vacancy for a Hardware Support position.  

 Academic Technology: See above under Facilities.  
 Infrastructure: A capital project to upgrade switching in Saranac Lake is 

underway. An upgrade of our telephones and new cabling to support 
improved wireless in the residence halls is also taking place.  

 
 NCCCAP 

Negotiations 
Negotiations are underway with NCCCAP for a successor contract to the 2019-2021 
CBA. We expect those to continue into the fall.  
 
2019-2021 Contract Extension 
We notified both counties regarding our desire to extend the 2019-2021 contract 
with NCCCAP for one year. We are expecting to be presented to the counties at the 
same time as the 2021-2022 budget is presented.  
 

 Middle States/SUNY/NYSED  
MSCHE Updates  
The Steering Committee met on June 17th for a writing day using Dr. Bishop’s 
observations to further improve the self-study document. We are awaiting news on 
the rounding out our self-study team.   
 
SUNY 
In SUNY matters: 
 Community College Marketing Campaign: Once again this year, SUNY is 

standing up and supporting a statewide marketing campaign for the 
community college sector. Their efforts will be tied into our as well.  

 Fall 2021 Plan: We are expecting guidance from SUNY regarding the steps 
we’ll need to take to be ready for Fall 2021. Given the recent changes in state 
guidance, we expect this to take some time to be formalized.  

 SUNY Shared Governance Award: The 2020-2021 Shared Governance 
Award was presented to North Country CC on Monday, June 7th, 2021 by 
Chancellor Malatras at the SUNY Voices Conference. Several North Country 
CC colleagues attended several who served as Senate Chair including Shir 
Filler, Bruce Rowe, and Sarah Kilby.   

 
 Resolutions  

There is one resolution for the Board to consider today. It has moved its way through 
our Shared Governance Process, including a college-wide policy review committee, 
President’s Council, and the College Senate. It is:  



 Campus Access Policy: As part of the College’s mission and our communities 
while at the same time ensuring the safety and security of our students and 
employees, the College has guidelines on campus access by the College 
community as well as the larger general public. This policy spells those out.  
 

That’s all for now. Gratefully yours,  

  
Joe Keegan   
President  
North Country Community 



NORTH COUNTRY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
RESOLUTION 

 
WHEREAS the College is committed to providing access to our 

campuses, in line with our mission and desire to serve our 
communities, and 

 
WHEREAS the College is committed to ensuring the safety and security 

of our students and employees, and  
 
WHEREAS in order to meet those commitments, the College needed to 

establish guidelines regarding campus access by the 
College community as well as the larger general public, and 

 
WHEREAS  the NCCC Policy Review Committee has reviewed and 

supports the policy, and 
 
WHEREAS the policy has been vetted through shared governance, 

including the College Senate, and  
 
WHEREAS the policy has been reviewed and is supported by the 

President,  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT 
 
RESOLVED  that the North Country Community College Board of 

Trustees hereby approves the Campus Access Policy.  
 
 
2020/21  
MOTION:   
ACTION:   
Yeas:  
Nays:    
Abstentions:  
DATE:   



 
 

 
POLICY:  Campus Access Policy  
DRAFTED:  October 30, 2019 
ADOPTED:    

 
I. POLICY STATEMENT 

North County Community College, sponsored by Essex County and Franklin County, is 
part of the State University of New York (SUNY) system. The establishment of policies is 
the responsibility of the North Country Community College Board of Trustees, while 
ensuring compliance with those policies is the responsibility of the College administration. 
We maintain and affirm that the most equitable and fair policies are those that involve 
shared governance, and we are committed to engaging the College community in the 
development/modification of established policies wherever possible.  This policy follows 
that process.  
 
As part of the College’s mission and our desire to most effectively serve our communities, 
while at the same time ensuring the safety and security of our students and employees, 
the College has limitations on campus access by the College community as well as the 
larger general public. This policy should not be confused with Use of Facilities Policy by 
non-college organizations and groups. There are many occasions when outside 
organizations or groups desire to use the College’s facilities, and as a public institution 
with an open access policy, it is our desire to accommodate those requests, where 
possible. For more on that, see our Use of Facilities Policy.  
 

II. SCOPE 
The policy applies to all full-time and part-time students and employees of the College 
and those affiliated groups which support the College, including the members and 
employees of the North Country Community College Association and the North Country 
Community College Foundation. It also applies to all members of the public. The use of 
College facilities is monitored and regulated by procedures enforced by the Vice President 
for Academic Affairs, Chief Financial Officer, the Associate Vice President of Student 
Affairs, Vice President of Marketing and Enrollment, and/or the Campus Coordinators. 

 
III. POLICY 

It is the policy of North Country Community College that students, faculty, staff and 
affiliated groups have access to the academic, administrative and recreational facilities 
during normal operating/open hours at each of our campuses. Faculty and staff who 
desire to use the College facilities off-hours for non-college related activities, need to 
request access in advance of the use by written request to their respective supervisor(s).  
 
As part of the educational process, guest speakers/visitors are regularly invited to the 
College to participate in or lead a classroom discussion or presentation, to serve on 
program/campus advisory boards, to enrich the student life experience, to host job fairs 
and transfer fairs, and to lead professional development, among other things. In all of 
these cases, the individual is invited to the College by a member of the campus 
community and any and all approvals are secured in advance of the use by written 
request to the appropriate supervisor/office.  
 
The general public is welcome to attend athletic, cultural, recreational and other-related 
College and community events that are held on-campus, many of which are advertised. 



 
 

The public can also access the libraries on each campus and may utilize the Sparks 
Athletic Complex at the Saranac Lake campus as part of Community Recreation upon 
payment of the fee associated with this use.  
 
With the exception of athletic and other open college events, visitors may be required to 
sign in and provide identification for security purposes. 
 
All those using the College’s facilities, whether employed by the College or an affiliated 
group, or a guest of the College, are required to abide by a common set of behavioral 
guidelines which are outlined in the Code of Conduct of the College. Specific activities 
that are prohibited include, but are not limited to, the following:  

 Failure to comply with directions of a College official or approved vendor acting in the 
performance of their duties.  

 Failure to show proper identification to a requesting College official or approved 
vendor acting in the performance of their duties.  

 Falsifying information, including forgery, alteration, or intentional misuse of College 
documents, records, or identification or failure to provide required records as 
requested.  

 Theft or damage to College property or property of a member of the College 
Community, including guests.  

 Unauthorized possession, duplication, or use of keys to any College property, 
premises, or vehicles or unauthorized entry or use of any College facilities.  

 Disorderly, lewd, indecent, or obscene conduct or aiding or procuring another 
individual to breach the peace or act in such prohibited fashion.  

 Disruption of teaching, programming, administration, elections, judicial proceedings, 
or any other College sanctioned activity or the normal operations of a College event on 
campus.  

 Tampering with safety equipment, including but not limited to fire alarms, fire 
extinguishers, or emergency exits.  

 Possession of or being under the influence of alcohol or other mood-altering drugs. 
We are an alcohol and drug-free campus, thus possession of any non-prescribed 
mood-altering drug is not allowed and alcohol on campus is permitted only with the 
express prior written approval of the College President or the Board of Trustees.  

 Unauthorized possession of firearms and other dangerous weapons as defined by New 
York State’s Penal Law Article 265 or explosives, or dangerous chemicals while on the 
campuses/sites of the College or at sanctioned off-campus events.  

 Unauthorized use of the name of North Country Community College or a College 
related organization, or claiming to speak or act in the name of the College or any 
related departments. All official North Country Community College news releases 
(other than drama or athletic activities) shall be first approved and channeled through 
the President’s Office. All news releases will be prepared and distributed by the 
College staff member designated by the President. 

 
 
 
 
Note:  The College has a separate policy for Children on Campus.   

 
 
 

  



 
 

Existing Policy  
USE OF COLLEGE FACILITIES  
The use of College facilities is monitored and regulated by procedures enforced by the 
Director of Campus & Student Life, the Vice President for Academic Affairs, the Vice 
President for Fiscal Operations and/or the Site Coordinators. Those offices can 
provide copies of the procedures for use of any facility. Those procedures are 
incorporated herein by reference. Specific activities prohibited include, but are not 
limited to, the following:  

 Any failure to comply with directions of a College official or approved vendor acting 
in the performance of their duties.  

 Failure to show proper identification to a requesting College official or approved 
vendor acting in the performance of their duties.  

 Falsifying information such as forgery, alteration, or intentional misuse of College 
documents, records, or identification or failure to provide required records as 
requested.  

 Theft or damage to College property or property of a member of the College 
Community, including guests.  

 Unauthorized possession, duplication, or use of keys to any College property, 
premises, or vehicles or unauthorized entry or use of any College facilities. 

  Disorderly, lewd, indecent, or obscene conduct or aiding or procuring another 
individual to breach the peace.  

 Disruption of teaching, programming, administration, elections, judicial 
proceedings, or any other College sanctioned activity or the normal operations of a 
College event, whether on or off-campus.  

 Tampering with safety equipment, including but not limited to fire alarms, fire 
extinguishers, or emergency exits.  

 Unlawful possession of firearms and other dangerous weapons as defined by New 
York State’s Penal Law Article 265 or explosives, or dangerous chemicals while on the 
campuses/sites of the College or at sanctioned off-campus events.  

 Unauthorized use of the name of North Country Community College or a College 
related organization, or claiming to speak or act in the name of the College or any 
related departments. All official North Country Community College news releases 
(other than drama or athletic activities) shall be channeled through the President’s 
Office. All news releases will be prepared and distributed by the College staff member 
designated by the President. 
 
 

 



 

 

Board of Trustees | 2021-2022 Meeting Schedule 

Friday, September 24, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, October 29, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, November 19, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, December 17, 2021 | 11:00 am 

Friday, January 28, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, February 25, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, March 25, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, April 29, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Thursday, May 26, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Thursday, June 30, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Thursday, July 28, 2022 | 11:00 am 

Friday, August 26, 2022 | 11:00 am 
 
 Unless otherwise noted, all meetings will be held through the Zoom platform. Links can be found every 
month on College's website | https://www.nccc.edu/board-of-trustees/index.html 

 

https://www.nccc.edu/board-of-trustees/index.html

	A- Agenda 06242021
	B - May Minutes 052272021
	BoT 2021-22 Schedule DRAFT
	C - IVPAA
	C -1a Streiff, Erin
	C -1b Streiff, Erin appointment letter
	C -1c Streiff, Erin resume
	C -2a Painter, Marcus
	C -2b Painter, Marcus appointment letter
	C -2c Painter, Marcus resume
	D -202106 BOT Report
	E -Interim CFO Report to the NCCC BoT 2021-06-24
	Interim CFO Report to the Board.pdf
	2021-22 Budget Draft for NCCC BoT.pdf
	2021-22 Budget Draft for NCCC BoT (capital).pdf
	5-Year Plan Report.pdf
	May Cover Sheet.pdf
	2020-21 Financial Statements - May.pdf
	2020-21 Financial Forecast - June.pdf

	F - President
	F1 - Campus Access Policy
	G -BoT 2021-22 Schedule DRAFT

